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PHC:  CH12 Hazardous Substances and Contaminated Land (Part) 06.08.15 

  [4.00 pm] 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Just for the benefit of any lay submitters here who have not 

been involved in the process previously, this is a pre-hearing meeting.  

It does not deal with the merits, it is merely an opportunity to sort out 5 

things about the filing of evidence, cross-examination, conferencing, 

directions in relation to the actual hearing of the matter.   

 

 So we will start by going through the lawyers and then we will come to 

you in due course so you can give us your perspective on these matters.  10 

I will just take first of all appearances, Ms Viskovic, you are for the 

Council? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, sir. 

 15 

SJH:   Mr Carranceja, you are for the Crown? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Mehlhopt, the Regional Council? 20 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Leckie? 

 25 

MR LECKIE:  Yes, sir, I am for Te Runanga o Ngai Tahu, Progressive 

Enterprises Limited, and Bunnings Limited. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Nicol, you are for the Chapman Tripp list? 

 30 

MS NICOL:   Yes, I am.  Would you like me to read it out? 

 

SJH:   No, no, it is all right, we have got it here, thank you.  Mr Scheele, you 

are for? 

 35 

MR SCHEELE:   I am representing the Christchurch Polytechnic Institute of 

Technology and the University of Canterbury. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.   

 40 

MS MURRAY:   Jane Murray representing the CDHB. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR JOEL:   Tim Joel representing Liquigas Limited. 45 
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SJH:   Thank you.  Mr la Marquand, you are for the oil company? 

 

MR LA MARQUAND:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 5 

 

MR HODGSON:   And Vance Hodgson for Horticulture New Zealand. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms McLeod? 

 10 

MS MCLEOD:   Transpower again, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 

MS WELLS:   Lois Wells. 15 

 

SJH:   Yes, Ms Wells. 

 

MS WELLS:   An individual. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you.  All right, thank you.  Ms Viskovic, you have added an 

additional issue. Has that been circulated to other - - - 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   I have added an additional issue.  Issue 20.  That has gone to 

most of the submitters but I did not quite get the chance to hand it out 25 

to everyone but I will make sure that those people who haven’t 

received it - - - 

 

SJH:   Well I’ll just read it out, that is all right, if you have got copies that can 

be made available.  For the benefit of the lay submitters, the Council 30 

has filed a memorandum but also a statement of issues that are for the 

Panel to deal with in this hearing.  They have added a further one, if 

you could perhaps give a copy, which reads whether there is an overlap 

regarding the responsibilities of territorial authorities and regional 

councils in regard to managing adverse effects of the use, development 35 

and subdivision of contaminated land.   

 

 So Ms Viskovic have you got anything else to add to your issues? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   I have a couple of further amendments to the issues.  So 40 

issue 7. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   So after the words “new provisions to”, it should read 45 

“objectives, policies, or permitted activities”. 
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SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   So just broadening out that issue slightly. 

 5 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   And then at issue 15. 

 

SJH:   15? 10 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 15 

MS VISKOVIC:   The appropriateness of the proposed objective, delete the 

word “and”, then policies and then the new words, “and methods”. 

 

SJH:   And methods? 

 20 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Thank you. 25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Did you want to make the same change to issue 16? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, sir. 

 30 

  [4.05 pm] 

 

 The other matter that I just wish to raise and this is something that I 

have discussed with Mr Carranceja and Mr la Marquand, is at 

paragraph 2.2(a) of our memorandum, we have raised a scope issue in 35 

relation to stage 2 submissions by the Crown and the oil companies. 

 

 Essentially I understand that the Crown and the oil companies stage 1 

submissions raised the same matters that have been raised in their stage 

2 submissions, so essentially the evidence – there is scope for the 40 

evidence to be heard regardless so that issue was - - -  

 

SJH:   Well stage 1 was rolled into stage 2, wasn’t it? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Exactly, sir, yes. 45 
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SJH:   But we issued direction recently where that happened, the Council 

would have reserved the matter, and the parties would have to resubmit 

on stage 2. That may have been only where there was an error rather 

than a rollover from an order of the Panel – but you’re quite happy 

there now on scope? 5 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, yes. 

 

SJH:   Right, okay, thank you. 

 10 

MS VISKOVIC:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Mr Carranceja, with that additional issue and with the amendments 

made on the deletion of the concern about scope, is there anything the 

Crown wishes to add? 15 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  No, sir, certainly we always thought it was within scope, 

so no additional issues but we can tell the old witnesses if now, sir, the 

appropriate time or do we - - -  

 20 

SJH:   I’ll go through the issues first and then I’ll come back to witnesses, 

thank you. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 

 25 

SJH:   Ms Mehlhopt, you quite happy with the issues? 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Happy with the issues identified, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Mr Leckie? 30 

 

MR LECKIE:   Yes, sir, happy with those, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Ms Nicol? 

 35 

MS NICOL:   Happy, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Mr Scheele? 

 

MR SCHEELE:   Happy, sir. 40 

 

SJH:   I’m sorry I didn’t write your name down again, Ms? 

 

MS MURRAY:   Jane Murray. 

 45 

SJH:   Yes, Ms Murray? 
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MS MURRAY:   Happy, sir. 

 

MR JOEL:   Yes, happy, sir. 

 5 

SJH:   Yes. Mr la Marquand? 

 

MR LA MARQUAND:   Yes, sir, I’m happy now, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Hodgson? 10 

 

MR HODGSON:   Yes, we’re happy, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms McLeod? 

 15 

MS McLEOD:   Happy, sir. 

 

SJH:   Now do you understand what we’re talking about here? 

 

MS WELLS:   I’m not sure, no. 20 

 

SJH:   Well, there’s a statement of issues that we have to consider that have 

been filed. We’ve talked about adding one and also amending it. So do 

you have any issues that you would like to have considered or added to 

this list? 25 

 

MS WELLS:   No. 

 

SJH:   So what is your concern – perhaps if you just tell us what your concern 

is, can you help us? 30 

 

MS WELLS:  My concern is as a resident is that I’ve been a citizen here for 79 

and a half years and I been paying rates for half of that time, and I 

bought land, thinking that it was good land and now I’m told that it is 

possibly contaminated and I feel that some reparation should be given 35 

by the Council that they should take some responsibility for this matter, 

seeing that they originally allowed the land to be sold by a developer 

and made into a residential property. That is my issue. 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you. I’m not quite sure that’s within the jurisdiction and 40 

scope of our hearings but - - -  

 

MS WELLS:   Yes. 
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SJH:   - - - you are certainly welcome and if you would, at the end, talk to the 

Friend of Submitter and he can advise you about what steps to take, 

okay? 

 

MS WELLS:   Thank you. 5 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Now an amended statement of issues, how long will that 

take – close of business Monday? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   To incorporate the changes that we’ve discussed? 10 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, close - - -  

 15 

SJH:   They’re very minor. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   - - - of business Monday should be sufficient time. 

 

SJH:   Yes, thank you. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And Ms Viskovic, can I be cheeky enough to ask whether 

or not that’s the date where you could also do the update on the 

previous matter we dealt with this morning – I don’t recall us setting a 

date for that. 25 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   On the - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   The one that came in this afternoon. 

 30 

MS VISKOVIC:   - - - the subdivision chapter? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, I think that should be fine. 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Now the date for mediation has been set, is Friday the 25th, does anyone 

have an issue with that, with Mr Mills? 40 

 

 Expert conferencing for the expert witnesses only facilitated by Mr 

Sullivan, the 8th of September, any issue with that? 

 

 Okay, now before we set the timetable we’ll just run through the 45 

witnesses – Ms Viskovic, how many for the Council? 
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  [4.10 pm] 

 

MS VISKOVIC:  Sir, two witnesses for the Council are set out at paragraph 3.1 

of our memorandum. 5 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Carranceja? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Sir, the Crown would call six witnesses, they are as 

follows, we will have a planner covering both the hazardous substances 10 

topic and the contaminated land topic, from the New Zealand Fire 

Service we will have an operational person from the Fire Service 

unlikely to be Mr Merry (ph 0.32), sir, someone who has more 

knowledge of the hazardous substances component, sir.  Also a planner 

from the New Zealand Fire Service. 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  We will also have an operational expert dealing with 

hazardous substance and new organism issues, sir, as well as a witness 20 

providing context regarding HSNO issues.  Lastly, we will have most 

likely from the Ministry for the environment but we are still 

investigating that, a witness who will provide evidence on policy 

matters relating through the National Environmental Standard 

applicable, sir. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you very much. Ms Mehlhopt, I know it hasn’t been the Regional 

Council’s practice to call witnesses but given the last issue that was 

added today it may be that you will be calling. 

 30 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes, sir, well the Regional Council’s interest at least in the 

Stage 2 proposal is simply in relation to a further submission that 

lodged on the oil companies submission that sought to be heard on that 

point and I do not have instructions as to this new issue that has been - - 

- 35 

 

SJH:   And witnesses? 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   So at this stage it is intended that no expert evidence. 

 40 

SJH:   But you would reserve your position on that last point until you can get 

instructions? 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes, I will take instructions in advance. 

 45 

SJH:   And if you could let us know by close of business Tuesday? 
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MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes, I can do that. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Leckie? 

 5 

MR LECKIE:   Thank you, sir.  For the Runanga there will be a planner and a 

cultural expert and for Progressive and Bunnings they will share 

witnesses – a planner and an environmental engineer. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Nichol? 10 

 

MS NICHOL:   The Port is planning on calling three experts; one on hazardous 

substances, one on planning and a company representative as well, the 

airport planning and company evidence, Waterloo planning evidence 

and Orion planning and company evidence. 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Scheele? 

 

MR SCHEELE:   Thank you, sir.  For the University of Canterbury we will be 

calling three witnesses – planning, a representative of the University 20 

and legal submission. For the Christchurch Polytechnic Institute of 

Technology, they will be sharing resources and calling the same 

witnesses. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Murray? 25 

 

MS MURRAY:  Canterbury District Health Board will be calling either a 

medical officer of health or a health protection officer. 

 

SJH:   Can we just have one witness this time? 30 

 

MS MURRAY:   Definitely. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Joel? 

 35 

MR JOEL:   Liquigas will be calling one planning witness, thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr la Marquand? 

 

MR LA MARQUAND:  Thank you, sir, yes, we will be calling a company 40 

witness for the hazardous substances matters and we may also call a 

company witness in relation to contaminated land if we need to.  There 

will be planning evidence for both those matters and we will have a 

risk assessment expert for the hazardous substances for matters in 

overlays. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   A total of three to four. 

 

MR LA MARQUAND:   So there will be three to four, yes. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   5 

 

MR HODGSON:  Thank you, Horticulture New Zealand would be calling a 

planning witness and an environmental engineer with expertise in 

agrichemical management and use. 

 10 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms McLeod? 

 

MS McLEOD: Sir, Transpower will be calling a company witness and a 

planning witness with evidence confined to hazardous facilities in the 

transmission corridor. 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Wells, do you wish to call evidence or do you wish to 

give evidence yourself at this hearing? 

 

MS WELLS:   I just wish to give evidence myself, sir. 20 

 

SJH:   Okay, well if you talk to the friend of the submitter before you go, he 

will help you with how you can set that out, the timing of filing it in, 

matters such as that, okay? 

 25 

MS WELLS:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:  Is there anyone else in relation to evidence?  Okay, we will just reiterate 

what we said earlier that if witnesses had given evidence or the same 

party has had evidence that is used on a similar topic earlier, we don’t 30 

want repetition, it can just be cross-referenced, we do not want 

repetition of the superior documents, just a reference to them and if 

parties are calling more than one witness can be ensure they talk to 

each other please. 

 35 

  [4.15 pm] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms Viskovic, I think I counted up something like 34 

witnesses, is that consistent with two days? 

 40 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, sir, I have just done the same exercise and I think two 

days again is probably a little light to run through that number of 

witnesses.  Perhaps when we provide our updated issues statement on 

Monday the Council can also provide an updated indication of the 

hearing time required. 45 
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SJH:   Well, I think we can probably leave it at two days with a reserve day at 

the moment.  Council by 15 September red line version of the chapter 

by the same date, Ms Viskovic? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, thank you, sir. 5 

 

SJH:   Submitters by 30 September, anyone have an issue with that? Thank 

you.  Rebuttal 6 October?   

 

 Now if parties want to cross-examine, and this would include you, 10 

Ms Wells, if you want to question any of the witnesses under our Order 

in Council you have to seek leave from us to do that so there is a 

document you would need to file by 8 October, which again the Friend 

of the Submitter will assist you with.  Under our standard procedure 

documents 10 minutes is given for cross-examination but if parties 15 

wish a longer time they can apply.   

 

 Evidence if it is to be served by the website it is required to be filed 

with the Secretariat before 3 pm on the due date.  Later than that it will 

have to be served by parties directly and the obligation of service 20 

remains on the parties.  If anyone seeks to file documents late they 

must apply for leave and explain the delay.  As we have indicated in all 

other chapters the evidence will be pre-read particularly with the 

experts we would seek a highlights package not a reading of the 

executive summary but a true highlights of the issues and I repeat again 25 

they need not say what has already been said.   

 

 Legal submissions, as with other chapters, we expect a brief opening.  

There will be leave to parties to rely on written submissions if they 

wish to do so.  We would expect closings to be more fulsome, again 30 

leave is granted to any party who wishes to rely on written closing legal 

submissions but they need to be filed by 3 pm on the day prior to 

presentation.  Hearing dates are 13 and 14 October with 15 October as 

a reserve day if needed.  Has anyone got anything else, Ms Viskovic? 

 35 

MS VISKOVIC:   Nothing further from me, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Carranceja? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   No, sir, thank you. 40 

 

SJH:   Ms Mehlhopt? 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   No, sir. 

 45 

MR LECKIE:   No, sir. 
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MS NICOL:   No, sir. 

 

MR SCHEELE:   No, sir. 

 5 

MS MURRAY:   No, sir. 

 

MR JOES:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Ms Wells, just take some time and spend it with 10 

Richard, he will give you assistance as to the process and such like.  As 

I indicated what you are seeking in terms of reparation is not something 

which is in our power and jurisdiction to do but perhaps by talking to 

him you can find someone you can approach about that but it is going 

to be the Council I am afraid and perhaps, Ms Viskovic, you could stay 15 

and help as well. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Certainly, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you very much.  We will adjourn until 9.30 tomorrow morning. 20 

 

ADJOURNED [4.18 pm] 


